
 

THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1234 MARKET STREET IN THE 17TH FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM 
AND IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. YOU WILL NEED VALID IDENTIFICATION TO ENTER THE 
BUILDING. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE LOCATED 
ON THE PAGES FOLLOWING THE AGENDA 

 
AGENDA 

I. Roll Call 
 
II. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of August 12, 2025 

III. Executive Director’s Report 

IV. Development – Affordable Housing (unsolicited) 

A. Civetta Property Group LLC - The properties below are proposed for disposition to Civetta 
Property Group LLC to develop thirty (30) single-family homes in the Seventh (7th) Council 
District. Fifteen (15) units will be two (2) stories and contain three (3) bedrooms and two (2) 
bathrooms without basements at 1,375 SF each; the other fifteen (15) units will be three (3) 

stories and contain three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms without basements at 1,375 SF each. 

The homes fit within the context of the neighborhood. They will be sold to households with incomes 

at or below 100% of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000. All homes will be eligible for the 

Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key program. The application was unsolicited and 

evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project. 

• 509, 511, 534, 536 W. Dauphin Street; 310, 313, 503, 505 Diamond Street; 
516, 518 Edgley Street; 2305, 2307, 2309 N. Lawrence Street; 2210, 2212*, 
2233*, 2306, 2308, 2310, 2312 N. Leithgow Street; 447 W. Norris Street; 2206 
N. Orianna Street; 2202, 2204, 2257 N. Orkney Street; 2049, 2138, 2236, 
2252, 2254 N. Reese Street; 304, 309, 311, 323, 512 W. Susquehanna Avenue; 
2047, 2054, 2151 N. 5th Street (CD 7) (* denotes properties being transferred by 
the City of Philadelphia and the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land 
Bank) 

 
V. Public Comment (Old & New Business) 

VI. Adjournment 

AGENDA 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ANNUAL MEETING 

Tuesday, September 9, 2025 – 10:00 AM 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 1 of 74



MEMORANDUM 
FROM: Andrea Imredy Saah, Esq., Senior Counsel 

1234 Market Street, 16th Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19107 
phillylandbank.org 

RE: Philadelphia Land Bank September 9, 2025 Board Meeting 

Board Meeting Notice, Public Attendance, and Comment Procedures 

DATE: August 29, 2025 

The Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Land Bank”) is scheduled for 

Tuesday, September 9, 2025, with the executive session to begin at 9:30 A.M. and the public meeting 

to begin at 10:00 A.M or as soon as the Executive Session has ended. 

THIS MEETING WILL BE IN PERSON AT 1234 MARKET STREET IN THE 

17TH FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM AND IS OPEN TO PUBLIC ATTENDEES 

AND FOR PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS. 

YOU WILL NEED VALID IDENTIFICATION TO ENTER THE BUILDING. 

PLEASE NOTE: To participate in the meeting, you must sign in before entering the conference room. 

This requirement is necessary to allow us to collect the names of participants as required by law. 

The Board agenda and package will be available to view no later than five (5) days prior to the Board 

meeting at https://phillylandbank.org/philadelphia-land-bank-board/. Public comments and questions 

regarding the matters that are posted on the agenda may be submitted by email prior to the Board meeting 

and/or in person if attending the Board meeting. 

Public Comment BEFORE Board Meeting: 

Email the following information to andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov by 3:00 p.m. on Monday, September 

8, 2025: 

• Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable;

• Contact information (your email address);

• Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and

• State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner.

Questions/comments submitted via email by the 3:00 pm deadline will be forwarded to the Board prior to the 

meeting, and copies will be distributed to public attendees at the Board meeting. They will be answered or 

addressed during the meeting to the extent the Board chooses, and they will attached to the minutes of the 

meeting. 

Public Comment DURING Board Meeting: 

If you wish to comment on a particular agenda item, you must indicate that on the sign-in sheet before the 

meeting begins. Once recognized by the Board Chair, individuals will be allowed two (2) minutes for public 

comment per person per agenda item. 

• The Chair reserves the right to limit comments when more than a certain number of people have the same

comments on the same matter.

• Staff will assist with timing and identifying individuals as needed.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 2 of 74

https://phillylandbank.org/
mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov


1234 Market Street, 16th Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19107 
phillylandbank.org 

 

Rules of Conduct: 

• Comments must be related to the specific agenda item in question. 

• There will be no personal attacks or hate speech against anyone, including applicants, staff members, 

Board members, attendees or other members of the public.  

 

Minutes of Board Meeting: 

The draft minutes of a Board meeting will be made publicly available when the Board package for the next 

Board meeting is posted on the Land Bank Board website. Once approved by the Board, the approved 

minutes will be posted under the appropriate Board meeting date on the Land Bank website. 

If you have a question about an agenda item after the meeting concludes, please submit it to 

andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov with the following information: 

• Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable; 

• Contact information (your email address); 

• Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and 

• State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner. 

Land Bank staff will provide a response to the extent possible. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 3 of 74

mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov


PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 1 of 48 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 

 

AUGUST 12, 2025 BOARD OF DIRECTORS ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT) 

 

 

The Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank was held on Tuesday, 

August 12, 2025, at 1234 Market Street, 17th Floor Boardroom, Philadelphia, PA 19107, of which 

proper notices were given. A condensed certified transcript of this meeting is attached to these minutes 

as Exhibit A. 

 

Call to Order 

 

The meeting was called to order at 10:03 am. 

 

Ms. Bernadel announced that prior to the Public Session, the Board held an Executive Session during 

which Mr. Rodriguez reviewed the agenda, provided updates on strategic planning, operational 

assessments, and sheriff’s sales, and noted that this is the first day the Land Bank will acquire properties 

at sheriff’s sales under the new Memorandum of Understanding.   

 

Item I 

Roll Call 

 

The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Herbert Wetzel, Nicholas Dema, 

Andrew Goodman, Cornelius Brown, Maria Gonzalez, Kelvin Jeremiah, Michael Johns, Majeedah 

Rashid, and Jenny Greenberg.   

 

Darwin Beauvais and Rebecca Lopez-Kriss were absent from the Board meeting. 

 

The following Land Bank staff members were present: Angel Rodriguez, Lily V. Bernadel, Esq., 

Mathen Pullukattu, Brian Romano, and Carolyn Terry. 

 

Public Attendees: The list of public attendees follows these minutes.   

 

A quorum of Directors was present, and the meeting, having been duly convened, proceeded with 

business. 

 

Ms. Bernadel reviewed the Board’s public comment policy and requested that attendees sign up to 

make public comments and sign the attendance sheet.  

 

Item II 

Approval of Board Minutes 

 

Chair Wetzel called for a motion to adopt the Board meeting minutes of July 8, 2025.   

 

Mr. Dema moved to approve the minutes.  Ms. Rashid seconded the motion. 

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board approved the minutes of the July 8, 2025 Board 

meeting.   

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 4 of 74



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 2 of 48 

Item III 

Executive Director’s Report 

 

No Executive Director’s report was provided this month.   

 

Item IV 

Administrative Matters 

 

IV.A.  Election of Board Officers   

Ms. Bernadel announced that, in accordance with the Land Bank’s bylaws, officers are elected 

annually. She explained that the current officers were elected in December 2024; however, the Board 

moved the annual meeting to August. Ms. Bernadel stated that the current officers, Herbert Wetzel 

(Chair), Nicholas Dema (Vice Chair), Rebecca Lopez Cruz (Treasurer), and Andrew Goodman 

(Secretary), were nominated to continue serving for another year or until their successors are elected. 

She noted that there were no competing nominations and asked the Board to approve the full slate. 

 

Chair Wetzel called for a motion regarding the proposed slate of candidates. Mr. Jeremiah moved to 

approve the proposed candidates, and Ms. Gonzalez seconded. 

 

Upon the motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution Electing 

Officers of the Philadelphia Land Bank to Hold Office Until 2026 Annual Meeting (attached to 

these minutes as Exhibit B). 

 

Item V 

Property Dispositions 

 

V.A. Development – Affordable Housing (Request for Proposal (RFP)) 

Mr. Pullukattu presented the proposed disposition of 2806, 2903, 2907, 2913, 2917, 2919, 2925, 2937, 

and 2939 Cecil B. Moore Avenue to HOW Affordable Housing, LLC for the development of nine 

single-family homes. Mr. Pullukattu stated that each 1,400 sq. ft. home will include three bedrooms 

and two bathrooms and will be sold for a maximum price of $280,000 to first-time homebuyers with a 

household income at or below 100% AMI through the Turn the Key program. Mr. Pullukattu added 

that the applicant was selected as the most qualified bidder through the RFP process, with an Economic 

Opportunity Plan applying, and that the design was revised from two to three stories in response to 

community feedback. 

 

Mr. Dema asked if the homes were designed as three stories because that is the typical neighborhood 

architecture in the area. Mr. Pullukattu confirmed, noting that while the adjacent properties are two 

stories, this site includes three-story homes, which the community generally supported and requested 

during feedback, leading to design changes.  

 

Chair Wetzel invited questions from the Board. Mr. Jeremiah asked if the project had support from the 

5th District Council, and Mr. Rodriguez confirmed that it did, noting the RFP was issued with that 

support. 

 

Ms. Gonzalez asked whether the proposals considered deeper affordability, such as reserving units for 

households at 80% AMI.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that the RFP was developed with the Council office 

and set at 100% AMI based on the site’s location.  

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 5 of 74



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 3 of 48 

Ms. Gonzalez expressed concern that, given gentrification in Brewerytown, some portion of the 

development should have been reserved for lower-income households.  Mr. Rodriguez explained that 

while the RFP was set at 100% AMI to support financing and buyer qualification, typical Turn the Key 

buyers average around 59% AMI. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah noted that setting eligibility at up to 100% AMI does not exclude buyers at 60–80% AMI. 

Mr. Rodriguez confirmed. In response, Mr. Goodman noted that since most Turn the Key buyers 

average around 59% AMI, there may be justification for deeper affordability. Ms. Gonzalez agreed. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez explained that setting eligibility at 100% AMI helps with underwriting and construction 

financing, while actual Turn the Key buyers average around 59% AMI. He added the RFP was 

developed with the Council Office, ensuring its support.  Ms. Gonzalez acknowledged this but raised 

equity concerns, noting higher-income households may have an advantage over lower-income buyers 

without specific set-asides. 

 

Mr. Dema asked about HOW’s history with Turn the Key projects. Mr. Rodriguez replied that while 

HOW has been approved for projects in other districts, they have not completed or started any, so there 

is no track record. He added that the Board previously approved them for an RFP project in the 8th 

District, but no sales have occurred yet. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah clarified that the RFP required all units to be Turn the Key up to 100% AMI. Mr. 

Rodriguez confirmed, noting that if a Council Office requested lower AMIs, the RFP would reflect 

that, as has been done in the 8th and 2nd Districts. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if there were any written public comments. There were none. He then invited Mr. 

Jihad Ali, who had signed up for public comment, to address the Board. 

 

Mr. Ali thanked the Board for their past support and expressed appreciation for the Turn the Key 

program. He highlighted his positive experience working with developer HOW on a 16-home project 

in Parkside, praising HOW for empowering community participation. Mr. Ali emphasized the 

importance of affordability, noting challenges with closing costs and mortgage requirements, and 

suggested exploring duplex models to help offset costs for buyers. He concluded by reaffirming support 

for HOW as a strong, community-minded developer. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked for a motion regarding the disposition. Mr. Brown moved to approve the 

disposition, and Mr. Goodman seconded the motion. 

 

Upon the motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 

Authorizing Conveyance of 2806, 2903, 2907, 2913, 2917, 2919, 2925, 2937, and 2939 Cecil B. 

Moore Avenue to HOW Affordable Housing, LLC (attached to these minutes as Exhibit C.) 

 

V.B.1 Development – Civetta Property Group, LLC (unsolicited) 

Mr. Rodriguez presented the next item, an unsolicited proposal from Civetta Property Group LLC, 

previously tabled pending more community engagement. He reported that two community meetings 

and site visits were held. The proposal is for the development of 30 single-family homes in the 7th 

Council District: 15 two-story units with three bedrooms and two bathrooms, and 15 three-story units 

with three bedrooms and two bathrooms, each approximately 1,375 sq. ft. The homes will be sold for 

a maximum price of $280,000 to first-time homebuyers with a household income at or below 100% 

AMI through the Turn the Key program. The application was evaluated under the Disposition Policy, 

and an Economic Opportunity Plan will apply. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 6 of 74



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 4 of 48 

 

Chair Wetzel invited questions from the Board. Mr. Jeremiah asked if any details of the application had 

changed since the prior month, and Mr. Rodriguez responded no. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah asked if the recent community meetings were held closer to the project site and whether 

they were well attended.  

 

Mr. Rodriguez deferred the question to the developer, who was present to provide details. 

 

Ms. Brennan Tomasetti of Civetta Property Group reported that two community meetings were held 

on July 10th and July 24th at locations recommended by community leaders. She shared that in addition, 

three property tours were conducted to show homes at different stages of construction. Ms. Tomasetti 

reported that attendance included 14 participants at the first meeting and over 20 at the second. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah asked if community members were supportive of the project. Ms. Tomasetti responded 

that feedback was mixed, with strong and passionate opinions expressed. 

 

Ms. Gonzalez asked what issues stood out from community feedback. Ms. Tomasetti noted concerns 

about parking and affordability, adding that while eligibility is set at 80–100% AMI, actual Turn the 

Key buyers average around 60% AMI, with some below and above that. She emphasized the program’s 

positive impact on residents’ lives. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if there were any additional questions or public comments on the item.  

 

Ms. Bernadel reported four written comments were received: three from community residents (Vanessa 

Colluci, Kathryn Krolikowski, and Relina) and one from Xiente, formerly Norris Square Community 

Alliance. Ms. Bernadel stated that the comments are included in the meeting packet and will be 

attached as exhibits to the August meeting minutes (the written comments received are attached as 

Exhibit D.) 

 

Chair Wetzel recognized Ms. Talia Giles. Ms. Giles, speaking on behalf of the Philly Liberation Center, 

stated opposition to the Civetta proposal, aligning with NSCAN, Xiente, and others. She emphasized 

the need for alternative models that prioritize genuinely affordable homeownership for current 

residents of the community to preserve economic diversity and prevent displacement. She added that 

the Land Bank should also make lots available for affordable rental housing for low-income and elderly 

residents. 

 

Chair Wetzel recognized Ms. Nilda Pimentel, Chair of Norris Square Community Action Network 

(NSCAN).  Ms. Pimentel spoke in opposition to the Civetta proposal. While recognizing the need for 

new housing, she stated the project does not meet the affordability needs of working families in the 

neighborhood. She reported that community members requested at least one-third of the homes be 

priced at $220,000, given that many local households earn under $50,000 annually and cannot afford 

the proposed $280,000 homes even with subsidies. Ms. Pimentel emphasized that residents are not 

opposed to development but seek alternative models that offer a portion of homes at lower price points, 

ensuring affordability and preventing displacement. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah asked Ms. Pimentel what the community envisions as a fair housing model, noting that 

building homes at $220,000 or less would match or fall below construction costs and would likely 

require subsidies beyond what a developer could absorb. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 7 of 74



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 5 of 48 

Ms. Pimentel stated that while the program is a valuable tool for creating affordable homeownership, 

subsidies should be structured differently. She shared that lower-priced homes should receive greater 

subsidies, as families at 60% AMI or below have lower incomes and greater need than those able to 

purchase at $280,000. She added that it depends on project scale and developer capacity, which impact 

construction costs and affordability. 

 

Chair Wetzel recognized Ms. Patricia DeCarlo, who reported that at the July 24 community meeting, 

17 of 19 residents voted against the Civetta proposal. She stated concerns that the $280,000 price point 

is unaffordable for neighborhood families and that requests for lower-priced units and off-street 

parking were rejected. She said residents view the project as contributing to gentrification and 

displacement and urged the Land Bank Board to deny it, stressing affordability should reflect the 

neighborhood’s AMI, not the citywide median. 

 

Chair Wetzel recognized Mr. Mohamed Rushdy. Mr. Rushdy highlighted the role of Michael and 

Brennan Tomasetti, owners of Civetta, in leading the Urban Development Association, which supports 

minority developers in Turn the Key projects. He expressed respect for community concerns but noted 

the financial realities of construction and shared past experiences offering alternative pricing models, 

including lower-cost homes at a $199,000 sale price, that were ultimately rejected by the community. 

He emphasized that while market-rate homes in Norris Square now sell for $700,000–$800,000, Turn 

the Key allows buyers to purchase homes for about $190,000 after subsidies. Mr. Rushdy agreed 

subsidies should be applied more consistently across price points.  He concluded that the Civetta 

application meets all Land Bank guidelines, with final approval resting with the Councilmember. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah asked Mr. Rushdy how he was able to offer homes at $199,000 in the past. Mr. Rushdy 

explained that profits from market-rate units priced around $500,000 would subsidize the lower-cost 

units.  Mr. Jeremiah asked if the community supported the mixed-price model. Mr. Rushdy said it was 

rejected, noting it would have meant a $60,000 loss per affordable unit and emphasizing that low 

margins make such projects difficult for most developers, with banks requiring minimum margins to 

finance them. 

 

Mr. Johns noted that the community’s concern appears to be largely about subsidies rather than 

developer costs and suggested higher or consistent subsidies to make homes more affordable. Mr. 

Rushdy agreed, stating that consistent subsidies across home price points would help and highlighted 

additional assistance available through Turn the Key lenders. He explained that with current subsidies 

and closing cost support, buyers have achieved mortgages around $1,150 monthly with minimal down 

payments, though high interest rates and increasing construction costs remain challenging for the 

developers. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah asked who sets the subsidies for the Turn the Key program. Mr. Rodriguez responded 

that the Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation (PHDC) sets the subsidy amount. 

 

Chair Wetzel noted that the question of subsidy amounts, and affordability thresholds is a broader 

public policy issue, separate from the Land Bank’s role. He stated that decisions about how much 

subsidy to provide and how far pricing can be reduced to make homes affordable for specific 

neighborhoods in Philadelphia fall under the Department of Planning and Development, specifically 

the Division of Housing and Community Development. 

 

Mr. Rushdy noted that as a PHDC board member, he would raise the subsidy issue with PHDC 

President David Thomas. He suggested considering a neighborhood-based approach where subsidy 

levels vary depending on local incomes, rather than applying a single standard citywide. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 8 of 74



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 6 of 48 

 

Chair Wetzel asked about the original Turn the Key sales cap.  Mr. Rodriguez said it was set at $280,000 

with subsidies up to $100,000, requiring that buyers spend no more than 30% of income on housing. 

At the beginning of the program, it cost approximately $220,000 to build a unit, so it could be sold at 

a maximum price of $230,000 to $250,000 per unit, but rising construction loan interest rates and 

materials costs have meant that the cost per unit has risen to $250,000 per unit, which means that most 

units are now sold for $280,000. Mr. Rushdy noted that construction costs are now approaching 

$260,000 per unit. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez further explained that in the 2nd District, homes were set at 80% AMI with sale prices 

around $230,000, which was essentially at cost. As construction costs rose, the Board approved 

corresponding price increases, with the baseline now about $250,000 to $265,000 per unit. He also 

pointed out that PHDC, not the Land Bank, manages mortgage subsidies, while the Land Bank’s role 

is limited to land disposition.  The TTK program is intended to subsidize buyers, not developers. 

 

Chair Wetzel noted that when Turn the Key was created, units could be built for $250,000 and, with 

subsidies, reduced to as low as $155,000, but rising construction costs and stagnant subsidy levels have 

undermined affordability. He emphasized that this is a policy issue outside the Land Bank’s control. 

Mr. Rodriguez added that higher mortgage interest rates, rising from 5% to 8%, have also significantly 

impacted affordability. 

 

Ms. Gonzalez stated that while ensuring that developers recover costs is important, greater focus should 

be placed on deeper affordability for lower-income households. She suggested exploring another tier 

of the Turn the Key program to better target residents at risk of displacement and noted that past models 

used different formulas that may be worth revisiting. 

 

Mr. Jeremiah emphasized that the Land Bank Board’s role is to decide on property dispositions, not to 

set affordability policy. He noted that concerns over AMI and affordability are recurring issues but 

should not be placed on developers, who are already building with minimal margins and facing high 

interest rates. He stated that if deeper subsidies are needed, this is a public policy matter for City 

Council and PHDC, not the developers. 

 

Ms. Gonzalez noted that the 2020 Disposition Policy was designed to support lower AMIs through a 

49% market-rate and 51% affordable housing mix, intended both to create mixed-income communities 

and provide cross-subsidies. Mr. Rodriguez explained that while mixed-income projects were 

originally intended to cross-subsidize affordability, community opposition to market-rate housing on 

public land shifted the approach toward requiring all-affordable projects, which in practice often results 

in homes priced at $280,000. 

 

Ms. DeCarlo criticized the sale of lots for $100, stating it benefits developers but harms the 

neighborhood, and claimed that such practices contribute to gentrification, rising property taxes, and 

the displacement of long-time residents who revitalized the community.  

 

Next, Chair Wetzel recognized Mr. Jeremy Blatstein.  Mr. Blatstein considers the $280,000 sales price 

cap under Turn the Key appropriate given current development costs; the price encourages developer 

participation. He emphasized that Philadelphia faces an income problem rather than a housing 

affordability problem and that the Land Bank Board’s role is to dispose of land consistent with City 

Council direction, not to set broader public policy. He noted that ultimate approval for this development 

project depends on Councilwoman Lozada’s decision to introduce a Council resolution approving the 

project and cautioned against wasting time if it is unlikely to advance. Mr. Blatstein also commented 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 9 of 74



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 7 of 48 

that not everyone should own a home, calling for a range of housing options for different AMI levels, 

and rejected the notion that Turn the Key projects cause displacement or gentrification. He emphasized 

that the project involves vacant lots that will be developed into new housing and does not displace 

existing residents. He cautioned against claims of people being “kicked out,” noting programs like the 

Longtime Owner Occupant Program that mitigate tax impacts. He reiterated that the Board’s role is to 

determine whether the project meets disposition criteria, not to set public policy. 

 

Mr. Goodman clarified that under the Disposition Policy, the Board is not required to approve any 

applicant, including the highest-scoring applicant for an RFP project. He emphasized that the Board’s 

role is not a “rubber stamp,” citing the first paragraph of the policy, which he said, makes this point 

clear. 

 

Chair Wetzel recognized Mr. Jihad Ali. Mr. Ali expressed appreciation for Ms. Patricia DeCarlo’s 

leadership and noted his past concerns with Civetta, explaining that over time the group has improved 

community engagement and delivered quality projects. He highlighted Civetta and HOW Group as 

strong developers and stressed the importance of moving forward with construction despite 

affordability debates. Mr. Ali supported adjusting AMI considerations by neighborhood and 

emphasized the role of political input in making projects possible. He praised Land Bank management, 

staff, and the Board for their work, encouraged empowering more developers, and urged continued 

discussion and refinement of the program. 

 

Chair Wetzel then called for a motion regarding the proposed disposition.  

 

Mr. Dema moved to approve the disposition, and Mr. Jeremiah seconded.  

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board held a roll call vote. Five Board members voted in 

favor of the resolution (Mr. Jeremiah, Mr. Johns, Mr. Dema, Chair Wetzel, and Mr. Brown), and four 

opposed (Mr. Goodman, Ms. Gonzalez, Ms. Greenberg, and Ms. Rashid).  As a majority of the eleven 

Board members (six votes) is required to adopt or reject the resolution under the organization’s bylaws, 

the motion failed, and the resolution was not adopted, thus tabling the disposition. 

 

Chair Wetzel moved to the next item on the agenda. 

 

V.B.2. Development – Macey’s Enterprises, LLC (unsolicited) – REMOVED FROM AGENDA 

 

V.C.   Development – Gardens/Open Space 

Project Manager Brian Romano presented the proposed disposition of 4200 and 4204 Viola Street and 

4205 Leidy Avenue in the 3rd Council District to the Neighborhood Gardens Trust for permanent use 

as a community garden. He noted the garden has operated for over 50 years and improvements have 

been made with support from NGT and the Pennsylvania Horticultural Society, including raised beds, 

tool storage, a delivery gate, water access, and site regrading. He added that the properties will be 

subject to a 30-year mortgage and permanently restricted for community garden use. 

 

Before discussion, Ms. Bernadel announced that Board Member Jenny Greenberg, who also serves as 

Executive Director of NGT, the proposed grantee, submitted a letter of recusal (attached to these 

minutes as Exhibit E) and left prior to the presentation of this disposition. 

 

Mr. Wetzel recognized Ms. Lorraine Gomez. Ms. Gomez, a lifelong resident of the 4200 block of Viola 

Street, spoke in support of preserving the garden her parents established in 1974. She said the garden 

provides fresh produce in a food desert, serves as a community gathering space, engages local youth, 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 10 of 74



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 8 of 48 

and has helped reduce violence. She urged the Board to transfer the property to NGT to ensure its 

protection. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked Ms. Gomez to confirm that the lots in question are already part of the garden and 

will not expand it. Ms. Gomez confirmed. 

 

Ms. Isabelle Dijols, a Viola Street resident and gardener, supported transferring the lots to preserve the 

community garden. She said the garden provides food access, supports youth education, and serves as 

a cross-cultural, intergenerational community space amid growing neighborhood development. 

 

Ms. Bernadel reported that three written comments were submitted on time by Councilmember 

Gauthier, Mindy Katz (Viola Street Community Garden organizer), and Randy Smith, a 19-year-old 

gardener at the Viola Street Garden. She explained that these comments are included in the meeting 

packet and that both the timely submissions and those received after the deadline will be attached as 

exhibits to the August Board meeting minutes (the written comments received are attached to these 

minutes as Exhibit F). 

 

Ms. Emaleigh Doley, Deputy Director of NGT, spoke on behalf of the applicant. She highlighted plans 

to add an orchard in partnership with the Philadelphia Orchard Project and thanked the Board for 

considering community comments and input. She offered to answer any further questions about the 

project. 

 

Mr. Wetzel called for a motion regarding the proposed disposition.  

 

Mr. Jeremiah moved to approve the disposition, and Mr. Brown seconded. 

 

Upon the motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 

Authorizing Conveyance of 4200, 4202, and 4204 Viola Street and 4205 Leidy Avenue to 

Neighborhood Gardens Trust (attached to these minutes as Exhibit G). 

 

V.D.   Side/Rear Yards 

Before presenting the next item, Mr. Rodriguez clarified for the record that, under the bylaws, the 

Civetta Property Group item previously discussed was tabled.  

 

Mr. Rodriguez then presented the proposed disposition of 2230 North 3rd Street in the 7th Council 

District to David Oliver, the adjacent homeowner, for use as a side yard. The property will be subject 

to a 30-year mortgage and permanently deed-restricted for side yard use. 

 

Chair Wetzel recognized Mr. Warren Williams. Mr. Williams raised concerns about possible 

development activity on another site but was informed by Mr. Rodriguez and Chair Wetzel that that 

proposed disposition had been tabled.  

 

Chair Wetzel asked if there were any questions from the Board. There were none. 

 

Chair Wetzel recognized Mr. Timour Kamran. Mr. Kamran, representing nearby residents and the 

Norris Square Community Action Network (NSCAN), presented a petition signed by 10 residents 

opposing the disposition of 2230 North 3rd Street as a side yard. He explained that the block has few 

homes, limited lighting, several industrial properties, and numerous vacant lots, and residents believe 

the site should be used for new housing to strengthen community safety and cohesion. He also noted 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 11 of 74



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 9 of 48 

that the applicant had not consulted with residents or the neighborhood association about his plan to 

acquire the lot to use as a side yard. 

 

Chair Wetzel asked if there were any additional speakers. Mr. David Oliver, the applicant for the 

property at 2230 North 3rd Street, shared his personal connection to the neighborhood, noting that he 

grew up nearby and returned after revitalization efforts. He described his ongoing community 

involvement, including cleaning the block with his fiancée, volunteering at the Youth Study Center, 

mediating neighborhood disputes, and teaching the Fair Chance Hiring Law at the Northwest Parole 

Office. Mr. Oliver apologized to the neighborhood association for not reaching out earlier and pledged 

to engage with them moving forward. 

 

Mr. Rodriguez clarified that outreach to neighborhood associations is not required under the Side Yard 

Disposition Policy, under which residency and adjacency are the primary considerations. He noted that 

the 7th District has a long history of approving side yard dispositions without such a requirement. 

 

Mr. Oliver added that he wishes to remain a positive and visible presence in the neighborhood. He 

explained that the block contains five houses, three single-family homes, two multi-unit homes, a 

garage, and a public event space. With recent improvements such as new lighting, he described the 

block as beautiful and said his desire to stay in the community was the reason he applied for the side 

yard. 

 

Ms. Pimentel of NSCAN stated that while neighborhood association approval is not required for side 

yard dispositions, residents of the community have actively maintained the block through cleanups and 

community events, despite challenges like vacant lots, poor lighting, and illegal dumping. She noted 

that ten or eleven neighbors signed a letter opposing the side yard disposition and urged that the lots 

be developed for housing to strengthen the community. 

 

Mr. Wetzel called for a motion regarding the proposed disposition.  

 

Mr. Johns moved to approve the disposition, and Mr. Jeremiah seconded the motion. 

 

Upon the motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 

Authorizing Conveyance of 2230 North 3rd Street to David Oliver (attached to these minutes as 

Exhibit H). 

 

Item VI 

Public Comment (Old & New Business) 

 

Chairman Wetzel invited any old and new business from the public. There were no comments. 

 

Item VII 

Adjournment 

 

Seeing no further comments from the Board or the public, Chair Wetzel called for a motion to 

adjourn.  Ms. Gonzalez moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Jeremiah seconded the motion.  Upon 

motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously voted to adjourn at 11:37 a.m. 

 

  

SECRETARY TO THE BOARD 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 12 of 74



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 10 of 48 

 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET 

 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, August 12, 2025, at 10:00 AM. 

 

User Name 
Talia Giles 

Timour Kamran 

Nilda Pimentel 

Patricia DeCarlo 

Lorraine Gomez 

Jihad Ali 

Isabelle Dijols 

Jeremy Blatstein 

Rev. Jerome Barmore 

David Oliver 

Emaleigh Doley 

Warren Williams 

Mo Rushdy 

Ali Mooney 

Stephanie Rhoades 

Antonio Cerqueira 

Leah Apgar 

Nick Ercole 

Terrance Lisby 

Robert Kirby 

Lexy McDowell 

David Langlieb 

Conlan Crosley 

Jeff Brown 

Michael Macey 

Mark Wallace  

Brennan Tomasetti 

Mike Tomasetti 

Joanne Parker 

Khalil Worrell 

Sherry Walker 

Jamilah Abdur-Rahman 

Miguel Santos 

Palnan LeCorls 

 

 

 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 13 of 74



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 11 of 48 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET 

 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, August 12, 2025, at 10:00 AM. 

 

 

User Name 
Sloane A. Folks 

Terrill Haigler 

Tealia Torres 

Sondra Mosgueru 

Donna Griff 

Jenny Chen 

Erica Adams 

Panela Ingram 

Prestina Serrano 

Ryan Milburn 

Alan Johnson 

S. Vance 

Jeff Wolfe 

Edward Hairston  

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 14 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 12 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 15 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 13 of 48 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 16 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 14 of 48 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 17 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 15 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 18 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 16 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 19 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 17 of 48 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 20 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 18 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 21 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 19 of 48 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 22 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 20 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 23 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 21 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 24 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 22 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 25 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 23 of 48 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 26 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 24 of 48 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 27 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 25 of 48 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 28 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 26 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 29 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 27 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 30 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 28 of 48 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 31 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 29 of 48 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 32 of 74



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 30 of 48 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 33 of 74



Exhibit B 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 31 of 48 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 - 40 

 

RESOLUTION ELECTING OFFICERS OF THE PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK  

TO HOLD OFFICE UNTIL 2026 ANNUAL MEETING 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bylaws of the Philadelphia Land Bank (the “Land Bank”), the 

Board of Directors of the Land Bank shall elect from among its members a Chair, Vice Chair, 

Secretary, Treasurer and other officers as the Board determines at the Annual Meeting of the Board, 

and the officers so duly elected shall hold office for one year or until their successors are appointed 

and qualified; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that the following individuals are elected to the position below 

appearing opposite their names, to hold office until the 2026 Annual Meeting or until their 

successors are appointed and qualified: 

 

Herbert Wetzel – Chair 

Nicholas Dema – Vice Chair  

Andrew Goodman – Secretary 

Rebecca Lopez Kriss – Treasurer  

 

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on August 12, 2025. 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 34 of 74



Exhibit C 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 32 of 48 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 – 41 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  

2806, 2903, 2907, 2913, 2917, 2919, 2925, 2937, AND 2939 CECIL B. MOORE AVENUE  

TO HOW AFFORDABLE HOUSING, LLC 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-706 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land 

Bank (the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real 

property of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the 

Land Bank, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the 

terms and conditions of Chapter 16-400 of the Philadelphia Code. 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best 

interests of the Land Bank to convey 2806, 2903, 2907, 2913, 2917, 2919, 2925, 2937, and 2939 

Cecil B. Moore Avenue (collectively, the “Property”) to HOW Affordable Housing, LLC (the 

“Purchaser”). 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia 

Land Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Nine Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($9,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval 

by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-

404 of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each 

hereby authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, 

and perform any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or 

desirable, to consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction 

Documents”) and, from time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the 

Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction 

Documents and any amendments, supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such 

terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or 

appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the 

Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior 

Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting 

following the date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on August 12, 2025. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 35 of 74



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 33 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 36 of 74



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 34 of 48 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 37 of 74



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 35 of 48 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 38 of 74



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 36 of 48 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 39 of 74



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 37 of 48 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 40 of 74



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 38 of 48 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 41 of 74



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 39 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 42 of 74



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 40 of 48 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 43 of 74



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 41 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 44 of 74



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 42 of 48 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 45 of 74



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 43 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 46 of 74



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 44 of 48 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 47 of 74



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 45 of 48 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 48 of 74



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 46 of 48 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 49 of 74



Exhibit G 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 47 of 48 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 – 42 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 

4200, 4202, AND 4204 VIOLA STREET AND 4205 LEIDY AVENUE 

TO NEIGHBORHOOD GARDENS TRUST 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-706 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land 

Bank (the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real 

property of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the 

Land Bank in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 16-400 of the Philadelphia Code; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best 

interests of the Land Bank to convey 4200, 4202, and 4204 Viola Street and 4205 Leidy Avenue 

(collectively, the “Property”) to Neighborhood Gardens Trust (the “Purchaser”); 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia 

Land Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Four and 00/100 U.S. Dollars ($4.00) and a 

mortgage in the amount of Two Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($225,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to 

approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-

404 of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each 

hereby authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, 

and perform any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or 

desirable, to consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction 

Documents”) and, from time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the 

Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction 

Documents and any amendments, supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such 

terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or 

appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the 

Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior 

Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting 

following the date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on August 12, 2025. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 50 of 74



Exhibit H 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for August 12, 2025  Page 48 of 48 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 – 43 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  

2230 NORTH 3RD STREET TO DAVID OLIVER 

WHEREAS, Section 16-706 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land 

Bank (the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real 

property of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the 

Land Bank, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the 

terms and conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best 

interest of the Land Bank to convey 2230 North 3rd Street (the “Property”) to David Oliver (the 

“Purchaser”). 

  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for One and 00/100 U.S. Dollar ($1.00) and a 

mortgage in the amount of Fifty-Four Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-Nine and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($55,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-

404 of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each 

hereby authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, 

and perform any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or 

desirable, to consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction 

Documents”) and, from time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the 

Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction 

Documents and any amendments, supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such 

terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or 

appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the 

Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior 

Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting 

following the date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on August 12, 2025. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 51 of 74



 

 

 

 

 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2025 PLB BOARD MEETING 

MATERIALS FOR AGENDA ITEM IV.A 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 52 of 74



RESOLUTION NO. 2025 – ___ 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  

509, 511, 534 AND 536 WEST DAUPHIN STREET; 310, 313, 503 AND 505 DIAMOND STREET;  

516 AND 518 EDGLEY STREET; 2305, 2307 AND 2309 NORTH LAWRENCE STREET;  

2210, 2212, 2233, 2306, 2308, 2310 AND 2312 NORTH LEITHGOW STREET; 447 WEST NORRIS 

STREET; 2206 NORTH ORIANNA STREET; 2202 AND 2204 NORTH ORKNEY STREET; 2049, 

2138, 2236, 2252 AND 2254 NORTH REESE STREET; 304, 309, 311, 323 AND 512 WEST 

SUSQUEHANNA AVENUE; 2054 AND 2151 NORTH FIFTH STREET 

TO CIVETTA PROPERTY GROUP, LLC 

 

WHEREAS, Section 16-706 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank (the 

“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of the 

Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, subject 

to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and conditions of 

Chapter 16-400 of the Philadelphia Code. 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests of 

the Land Bank to convey 509, 511, 534 and 536 West Dauphin Street; 310, 313, 503 and 505 Diamond 

Street; 516 and 518 Edgley Street; 2305, 2307 and 2309 North Lawrence Street; 2210, 2212, 2233, 2306, 

2308, 2310 and 2312 North Leithgow Street; 447 West Norris Street; 2206 North Orianna Street; 2202 

and 2204 North Orkney Street; 2049, 2138, 2236, 2252 and 2254 North Reese Street; 304, 309, 311, 323 

and 512 West Susquehanna Avenue; and 2054 and 2151 North 5th Street (collectively, the “Property”) to 

Civetta Property Group, LLC (the “Purchaser”). 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 

Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Three Thousand Six Hundred and 00/100 U.S. 

Dollars ($3,600.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to 

approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate 

the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time 

and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may 

be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and 

modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior 

Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so 

executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the 

Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 53 of 74



 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on _________________. 

Philadelphia City Council Resolution No. ___________ dated __________________. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 54 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

1. ADDRESS: 

509, 511, 534, 536 W. Dauphin Street; 310, 313, 503, 505 Diamond Street; 516, 518 Edgley 
Street; 2305, 2307, 2309 N. Lawrence Street; 2210, 2212, 2233, 2306, 2308, 2310, 2312 N. 
Leithgow Street; 447 W. Norris Street; 2202, 2204 N. Orkney Street; 2206 N. Orianna Street; 
2049, 2138, 2236, 2252, 2254 N. Reese Street; 304, 309, 311, 323, 512 W. Susquehanna 
Avenue; 2054, 2151 N. 5th Street 

2. PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

Zip Code: 19122, 19133 Census Tract: 015600, 016400 Council District: 7 

Zoning: RM-1, RSA-5, CMX-1 Lot Area:  29,573 SF  

OPA Value: $1,687,000 Appraised Value: $3,320,000 

Redevelopment Area: N/A Urban Renewal Area: N/A 

3. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Applicant Name: Civetta Property Group, LLC Type: Business / Legal Entity 

Entity Owners: Michael Tomasetti and Brennan Tomasetti 

Mailing Address: 51 N. 3rd Street, Unit 154, Philadelphia, PA 19106 

Authorized Contact: Michael Tomasetti 

Application Date: August 8, 2024 

4. PROJECT INFORMATION 

Disposition Type: Non-Comp: 51% of Site as 
Affordable, Workforce, or Mixed Income Housing 

Strategic Plan Goal (Land Bank Only): Housing - Workforce 
(61%-120% AMI) 

Price Paid at Settlement: $3,600 Proposed Use: Residential 

Development Type: New Construction No. of Buildings: 30 

Units:  30 units - Residential /  0 units - Commercial End User: Sale to Homebuyer  

Gross Floor Area (sq. ft.):  41,250 SF Construction Cost / sq. ft.: $151.00 

Construction Costs: $6,228,750 
Project Funding Available: Committed and Verified - Applicant 
has provided documentation of available, committed funds in 
an amount no less than total project costs. 

Total Project Costs: $7,466,750 Mortgage Amount: $N/A 

5. APPROVALS, DEADLINES, EOP 

Agreement Executed: TBD Economic Opportunity Plan Goals:  MBE -20% and WBE –20 % 

Land Bank Board Approval: TBD PRA Board Approval: N/A 

Construction Commencement Deadline:  3 months 
after settlement 

Construction Completion Deadline:  18 months after 
settlement 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 55 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

6. DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY 

 A. How was title acquired?   
There are thirty-four (34) properties in Land Bank inventory, one (1) in PRA and one (1) in the City’s ownership.  All 
City and PRA owned properties are going through the approval process to be transferred to the Land Bank. 
 

 B. Application Summary: 
Civetta Property Group, LLC plans to acquire thirty-six (36) parcels and consolidate thirteen (13) to develop thirty 
(30) affordable single-family homes to be sold at or below 100% AMI with a maximum sales price of $280,000.  All 
homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key program.  The application was 
unsolicited and is qualified pursuant to the disposition policy.  An EOP plan will apply for this project.  
 

 C. Unit Details:  

• 30 Total homes ranging at approximately 1,375 SF 

• 15 homes will be two stories and will contain 3 bedrooms and 2 bathrooms with no basement. 

• 15 homes will be three stories and will contain 3 bedrooms and 2 bathrooms with no basement. 

• The lots to be consolidated and subdivided are: 503 and 505 Diamond Street; 309 and 311 W. Susquehanna 
Avenue; 516 and 518 Edgley Street; 2210 and 2212 N. Leithgow Street; 2306 and 2308 N. Leithgow Street; 
2310 and 2312 N. Leithgow Street; and 2305, 2037, and 2309 N. Lawrence Street. 

• Target buyers with incomes at or below 100% AMI. 

• Will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key program with a maximum sales 
price of $280,000. 

• The homes fit within the context of the neighborhood. 
 

 D. Summary of Restrictions or Covenants:   
 

This transaction is subject to the following only if the box is checked:  

             ☒ Irrevocable Power of Attorney ☒Right of Re-entry/Reverter 
 

A Declaration of Restrictive Covenants will be placed on all the affordable units to ensure that they will remain 
affordable for a minimum of 15 years, and purchasers of the affordable units will be income certified. 
 

 E. Community Outreach: 

• Staff received a completed Community Outreach Package to confirm a community meeting was held:  

               ☒ Yes   ☐ No  ☐ N/A 

• Meeting Date (if applicable): June 26, 2025; July 10, 2025 and July 24, 2025 
 

7. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the disposition of 509, 511, 534, 536 W. Dauphin Street; 310, 313, 503, 505 Diamond Street; 516, 
518 Edgley Street; 2305, 2307, 2309 N. Lawrence Street; 2210, 2212, 2233, 2306, 2308, 2310, 2312 N. Leithgow 
Street; 447 W. Norris Street; 2202, 2204 N. Orkney Street; 2206 N. Orianna Street; 2049, 2138, 2236, 2252, 2254 N. 
Reese Street; 304, 309, 311, 323, 512 W. Susquehanna Avenue; and 2054, 2151 N. 5th Street to Civetta Property 
Group, LLC for the development of thirty (30) affordable single-family homes eligible for the Turn the Key program. 

 

Prepared by: Cristina Martinez – Development Specialist 

Reviewed by: Angel Rodriguez – Executive Director 
 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 56 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

SITE MAP 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 57 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

SITE PHOTOS 

 

                                 310 Diamond Street                                                                               313 Diamond Street        

   
 

503 - 505 Diamond Street 

 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 58 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

                          304 W. Susquehanna Avenue                                           323 W. Susquehanna Avenue    

     
 

                                 309 Susquehanna Avenue                                                     311 W. Susquehanna Avenue

   
                                         

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 59 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

509-511 W. Dauphin Street

 

534-536 W. Dauphin Street 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 60 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

         512 W. Susquehanna Avenue                                                               447 W. Norris Street       

   

                        516 Edgley Street                                                                           518 Edgley Street    

   

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 61 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

                                     2054 N. 5th Street                                                                           2151 N. 5th Street  

  

                             2049 N. Reese Street                                                                  2138 N. Reese Street           

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 62 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

                          2236 N. Reese Street                                                                        2233 N. Leithgow Street          

   

2252-2254 N. Reese Street

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 63 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

2210-2212 N. Leithgow Street 

 

2306-2312 N. Leithgow Street 

 

                           

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 64 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

 

       2202 N. Orkney Street                                                               2204 N. Orkney Street    

    

 

2305, 2307, 2309 N. Lawrence Street

 

           

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 65 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

2206 N. Orianna St 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 66 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

EVATIONS AND FLOOR PLANS 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 67 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 68 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 69 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 70 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 71 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Committed  (Y/N) Source % Total

Senior Debt $6,719,535.00 90%

Subordinate Debt $747,215.00 10%

Developer Equity $0.00 0%

TOTAL SOURCE OF FUNDS $7,466,750.00 100%

USE OF FUNDS
HARD COSTS

ACQUISITION Cost % Total

Property Acquisition $3,600.00 0.05%

Closing Costs $5,400.00 0.07%

UNIT CONSTRUCTION # of Units 30

Complete table at bottom of page $6,228,750.00 83.42% Cost per Unit $248,891.67

OTHER CONSTRUCTION TOTAL COST $7,466,750.00

Landscaping $19,320.00 0.26%

Permits $69,690.00 0.93% # of Units 30

Clearance and Demolition $12,090.00 0.16% Sales Price per Unit $280,000.00

Utility Connections & Tap Fees $33,090.00 0.44% TOTAL SALES $8,400,000.00

INFRASTRUCTURE 0% Selling Costs ~3% -$252,000.00

Streets and Sidewalks $36,750.00 0.49% NET SALES $8,148,000.00

Water and Sewer $26,100.00 0.35%

Stormwater & Drainage $30,720.00 0.41% Expected Profit $681,250.00

Impact Fees $14,520.00 0.19% ROI 9.1%

OTHER HARD COSTS

Hard Cost Contingency $370,000.00 4.96%

TOTAL HARD COSTS $6,850,030.00 91.74%

SOFT COSTS 

PROFESSIONAL FEES

Site Planning $154,470.00 2.07%

Architecture & Engineering $186,420.00 2.50%

Legal $5,000.00 0.07%

Consultant $0.00 0.00%

Survey $14,400.00 0.19%

Market Study $0.00 0.00%

Environmental $0.00 0.00%

Organization Expense $0.00 0.00%

Other Consultants $0.00 0.00%

FINANCE COSTS

Construction Loan Interest $91,920.00 1.23%

Construction Origination $18,000.00 0.24%

Appraisal $0.00 0.00%

Construction Insurance $31,140.00 0.42%

Property Taxes $15,120.00 0.20%

OTHER SOFT COSTS

Holding Costs $11,250.00 0.15%

Soft Cost Contingency $65,000.00 0.87%

Developer Fee, if applicable $0.00 0.00%

Other - describe in space to the right $24,000.00 0.32% Marketing: Digital, Street, Local Meeting

TOTAL SOFT COSTS $616,720.00 8.26%

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST $7,466,750.00 100.00%

Construction/Rehab. Costs 1932

Unit Description Unit Sq. Ft. Cost/Sq. Ft. Unit Cost # Units Total Const. Cost Total Sq. Ft. Total Sq. Ft. %

1 Single family homes 3bed 2 bath 1,375 $151.00 $207,625.00 30 $6,228,750.00 41,250 100.00%

TOTALS 30 $6,228,750.00 41,250 100.00%

Land Development Financial Worksheet

Civetta Property Group

Legacy Capital

Indicate Source and, if applicable, describe

DEVELOPMENT BUDGET/ SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Applicant: Civetta Property Group LLC

Property Address:

 509, 511, 534, 536 W. Dauphin St.; 310, 313, 503, 505 Diamond St.; 516, 518 Edgley St.; 2305, 2307, 2309 N. Lawrence St.; 2210, 2212, 2233, 2306, 

2308, 2310, 2312 N. Leithgow St.; 447 W. Norris St.; 2206 N. Orianna St.; 2202, 2204 N. Orkney St.; 2049, 2138, 2236, 2252, 2254 N. Reese St.; 304, 

309, 311, 323, 512 W. Susquehanna Ave.; 2054, 2151 N. 5th St.

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 72 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

APPRAISAL AND CURRENT USE SUMMARY 

Lot 

# 
Location 

Frontage 

(ft) 

Use (vacant 

lot, side yard, 

garden, 

vacant 

building) 

Agency 
OPA Value  

(this year) 

Opinion Of 

Value / 

Appraisal 

1 447 W. Norris Street 15 Vacant Lot PLB 115,800 110,000 

2 2054 N. 5th Street 18 Vacant Lot PLB 167,300 150,000 

3 2049 Reese Street 16 Vacant Lot PLB 90,600 75,000 

4 503 Diamond Street 12 Vacant Lot PLB 31,400 75,000 

5 505 Diamond Street 12 Vacant Lot PLB 31,400 75,000 

6 313 Diamond Street 15.5 Vacant Lot PLB 16,700 100,000 

7 310 Diamond Street 18 Vacant Lot PLB 144,400 135,000 

8 2233 N. Leithgow Street 16 Vacant Lot CITY 35,900 75,000 

9 304 W. Susquehanna Avenue 16 Vacant Lot PLB 68,700 150,000 

10 309 W. Susquehanna Avenue 17 Vacant Lot PLB 22,400 160,000 

11 311 W Susquehanna Avenue 16.5 Vacant Lot PLB 47,500 155,000 

12 323 W Susquehanna Avenue 17 Vacant Lot PLB 53,000 115,000 

13 2151 N. 5th Street 17 Vacant Lot PLB 57,800 110,000 

14 2138 N. Reese Street 14 Vacant Lot PLB 33,900 70,000 

15 516 Edgley Street 12 Vacant Lot PLB 25,800 50,000 

16 518 Edgley Street 12 Vacant Lot PLB 25,800 50,000 

17 512 W. Susquehanna Avenue  17.58 Vacant Lot PLB 59,900 125,000 

18 2206 N. Orianna Street  16 Vacant Lot PLB 28,600 65,000 

19 2210 N. Leithgow Street 13 Vacant Lot PLB 27,800 55,000 

20 2212 N. Leithgow Street 13 Vacant Lot PRA 27,800 55,000 

21 2202 N. Orkney Street 15 Vacant Lot PLB 28,800 65,000 

22 2204 N. Orkney Street 15 Vacant Lot PLB 28,600 65,000 

23 2236 N. Reese Street 14.42 Vacant Lot PLB 47,400 115,000 

24 2252 N. Reese Street 14 Vacant Lot PLB 46,600 110,000 

25 2254 N. Reese Street 14 Vacant Lot PLB 46,600 110,000 

26 534 W. Dauphin Street 16 Vacant Lot PLB 46,600 110,000 

27 536 W. Dauphin Street 16 Vacant Lot PLB 10,800 95,000 

28 511 W. Dauphin Street 15 Vacant Lot PLB 55,300 120,000 

29 509 W. Dauphin Street 15 Vacant Lot PLB 55,300 120,000 

30 2306 N. Leithgow Street 13 Vacant Lot PLB 29,900 65,000 

       

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 73 of 74



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated:  August 28, 2025 

 

 

31 2308 N. Leithgow Street 12.83 Vacant Lot PLB 29,900 65,000 

32 2310 N. Leithgow Street 12.83 Vacant Lot PLB 29,800 65,000 

33 2312 N. Leithgow Street 12.83 Vacant Lot PLB 29,800 65,000 

34 2309 N. Lawrence Street 12.83 Vacant Lot PLB 29,700 65,000 

35 2307 N. Lawrence Street 12.83 Vacant Lot PLB 29,700 65,000 

36 2305 N. Lawrence Street 12.83 Vacant Lot PLB 29,700 65,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for September 9, 2025 Page 74 of 74




